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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL {IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Located approximately eight miles southeast of Lexington in Fayette County, Kentucky,
the Cave Spring Farm complex encompasses six structures situated on the gently rolling
terrain south of the Athens-Walnut Hill Road. The complex consists of a two~and-one-
half-story - stone residence, a one-and-one-half-story, brick smokehouse, a one-and-one-
half-story brick granary/hemp house, a stone icehouse, a one-and-one-half-story.

brick servant's quarters, and a one-and-one-half-story log house. In additian, the
family graveyard is located on a hill east of the main house (see site location map).

The following are descriptions of the structures that make up the complex:

Main House

Constructed in 1792, this two-and-one-half-story, three-bay" stone house (see photo 1)
originally faced eastward. The structure was reorientated to face westward ca. 1845 '
thereby accomodating a new public road. Evidence of this change is visible in the absence
of a central bay on the second level of the western facade and the existence of a

somewhat more elaborate cornice with a deep fascia on the eastern facade.

Windows are nine-over-six on the first floor and six-over-six on the second level. The
first floor windows are surmounted by well-executed jack arches. Both the front and
rear porches have chamfered posts with slender, square banisters. The gable-roofed
front porch ghdters the central bay, while the shed-roofed rear porch éxtends across
the entire-€ast facade.

Square gable windows flank the chimneys of the main block. The s uth chimney is set
flush with the exterior wall, whereas the north chimney is set outside the end wall.

The one—and-one-half-story stone kitchen to the south of the mam block was initially
connected to the house by a dogtrot which was enclosed ca. 1800 to create a dining

room. The wing on the north end of the house is a 1968 addition consisting of a bedroom
and bath.

On the interior, the house originally consisted of a hall and parlor plan. Corner stairs
with winders were located in the northwest and southwest corners of each room: The
southwest stairs are somewhat wider and continue past the second floor to the attic.
The partition dividing the first floor rooms was situated so as to make the north room
the larger of the two. The original ash floors and walnut trim remain; however, the
original mantles had been removed and Federal mantles from a house in Garrard
County, Kentucky, now replace them. In the kitchen, the stone cooking fireplace with
splayed jack arch remains in good condition. Enclosed corner stairs with winders

in the northeast corner of the kitchen give access to the attic level.

(continued)
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Cave Spring attains'significance not only as an outstanding example. of the store
building:tradition -in Kentucky, -but also because of its retention of the several-
outhuildings which;:together with the heuse; . represent the sequence of log, stone,

and brick construction in Kentucky. -The log house was constructéd:ca. 1784, -

shortly mfter-Captain Robert Boggs (1746-1827), one of the founders of Boones-

borough, settled in the area. The log structure was followed by the two-and-one-half-
story, stone house completed in 1792, and the various brick outbuildings were erected in
due course as the farm developed.

Robert Boggs first came to Kentucky in 1774 as a chain bearer for John Floyd,
deputy surveyor of Viiginia (Cassidy). Boggs returned in 1775 and helped to erect
the fort at Boonesborough, the second settlement to be established in Kentucky.
Using the fort as a base for selecting lands on which to make claims, he soon dis-
covered a large spring issuing from a cave in what is now Fayette County and
decided on this location for his future home (Ibid. ). :

After a 1apse as capta'in under Major Evan Shelby in General Christain's army in
the Cherokee Expedition of 1776 and a period in the Revolutionary Army in the east,
he married and moved to Fort Harrod to await adjudication of his claims before the
Virginia Land Commission. On February 18, 1784, he settled on Cave Spring Farm
with his wife, child and others. From then until 1792 he and his growing family
lived in the log house until the main stone residence was completed (Ibid.)

During the period of 1784-1800, ancillary buildings were also constructed, enough

for a large family of around 25 people, including slaves. In charge of quarrying,
brick-making and erection, wes an Irish stonemason by the name of Devore (probably
Dennis Dever; gccording to~- .. Wooley, p. 600). None of the frame buildings

which were once part of the farm complex survive. However, the main house of
stone, the original log house, and many of the brick outbuildings still stand and are

in excelleit condition.! The unspoiled, beautifully landscaped farm is presently owned
by a descendent of Robert Boggs and has been in the family continuously except for
one period.

lAbout 1810-1815, ,Boggs had the log house dismantled and moved to higher ground.

' In 1974, the present owner moved the structare (without disassembly) back to the

farm and near its or1gmal location (Mastin, p. D-3).
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Smokehouse

Southeast of the house is the one-and-one-half-story, brick smokehouse and adjoining
office (see photo 2). Laid in common bond, the west wall is pierced by a double-
sash window and a door, both of which are surmounted by jack arches . A second
door is located in the north gable end and above it are two windows. In 1965, a wing
was added to the rear, and the structure was converted to a giesthouse . The exterior

retains its original architectural integrity and the interior has been tastefully adapted
for modern usage.

Hemp House/ Granary

Located southwest of the main house is the one-and-one-half story, brick hemp house
and granary (see photo 3). A gable-roofed building similar in proportion and scale
to the smokehouse, this structure is laid in common bond and rests on a low, stone
foundation. The door is located in the south gable end with single window centered
in the gable peak above. A second, larger window pierces the west side wall. All’
openings have jack arches. The structure functioned as a hemp house and granary
until 1900. Currently, the building is used as a stable for pleasure horses, and it
remains virtually unaltered on the exterior.

Icehouse

South of the main residence is the stone icehouse set in the hillside above the cave
spring for which the farm is named (see photo 4). The three foot thick stone walls
are lined with brick on the interior. The icehouse was used as such until 1915, but
recently the structure has been enlarged by adding a floor at the ground level which
affords space for yard tools and machinery. The subterranean level is now used
for potato storage. The rectangular building has a gabled roof of wooden shingles.

Servant's Quarters

Situated southwest of the main house is the one-and-one-half-story, brick servant's
quarters (see photo 5). Facing northward, the main block is three bays wide with a
central door and jack arches over all the openings. The east end window was
originally a door. A brick chimney rises from the ridgeline of the gable roof. Gable
end windows light the upper story. The interior consists of two rooms each with a fire-
place in the center wall. In 1965, a rear and side wing were added on the south and

west sides, respectively. These additions were designed to blend with the original
section.

(continued)
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Log House
Located on the hilltop south of the main house and above the cave spring is the log

house constructed ca. 1784 (see photo 6). The one-and-one-half-story structure
initially consisted of two pens connected by a dogtrot. Large, stone chimneys are
located on the gable end walls, Ladders in each pen gave access to the upper level.
Later, the dogtrot was enclosed and a stairway was added in the northeast corner
of the passage.

Originally the structure was built nearer the creek, in close proximity to the cave.
In 1872, a division of property between heirs caused the house to be moved. It

continued in use as a residence until 1955 when it was relegated to hay storage and finally .

abandoned. In 1974, the log structure was acquired by the present owner and moved
to the site it now occupies. The following year, it was remodeled and new windows
were cut and a new porch added to the facade. ' Facing northward overlooking the
farm, the log house currently serves as a guesthouse. '

Graveyard
The Boggs family graveyard is located on a hillside 700 feet east of the main house

(see photo 7). The burying ground is enclosed by a well-maintained, octagonal stone
wall. A tall, central monument bearing the inscription '"Settled on This Place,

Feb. 18, 1784'" also contains the names of Robert and Sarah Huston Boggs and those
of their children. Individual markers indicate the actual burying places of the
family, and in the rear of the graveyard are rough, vertical, unmarked stones
denoting where house slaves were buried. Other slaves were buried outside the
fence, and thus no trace of their graves remains.

The house and farm complex have undergone a careful restoration and are maintained

in excellent condition.” The nominated acreage includes the main house, all outbulldings,
and surrounding land that could be considered frontage property important visually

to the setting of the complex. The Athens-Walnut Hill Road in front of the main

house is used as the northern boundary, the access road as the western boundary,

a line running along a ridge to the rear of the log house as the southern boundary,

and a line of convenience to the east of the cemetery through open fields as the

eastern boundary.
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of the Athens-Walnut Hill Road. The line follows the south side of the Athens-Walnut Hill
Road for approximately 1000 feet returning to point A.
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